FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 2000/ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION REGULATIONS 2004 
Your request for information has now been considered and the Council’s response to your questions is shown below.

You asked:
1. Does your local authority routinely consider people living with HIV to have a priority need for social housing?

No. However, if they have complicating factors creating a medical need for housing, these will be considered in line with our allocations policy and an assessment will be made as to whether they qualify to join the Housing Register. A person living with HIV does not have an automatic priority need under homelessness legislation. 

a) – What criteria do you use to determine whether a person living with HIV has a priority need for social housing?
Priority need to join the housing register for those with a medical condition is considered on the basis of the impact the persons current housing is having on their health. A person living with HIV would be asked to provide medical evidence of how their current home is causing detriment to their health.

Within homelessness legislation a person has a priority need for accommodation if they are vulnerable for any “other special reason” (section 189(1) (c), HA 1996). The statute envisages that vulnerability may arise due to circumstances that are not expressly provided for in the legislation. Each application must be assessed on its individual circumstances. “Special reasons” are not restricted to any mental or physical disabilities that the applicant has (R v Kensington and Chelsea RLBC ex p Kihara (1997) 29 HLR 147). 
For example, an applicant may have a priority need as a result of vulnerability because they have a need for support but no family or friends to supply that support (see Hotak v London Borough of Southwark [2013] EWCA Civ 515, where the Court of Appeal held that an LHA was entitled to have regard to personal support and assistance when considering priority need (see Legal update, Local housing authority entitled to have regard to personal support and assistance when considering “priority need” (Court of Appeal) (www.practicallaw.com/0-529-7897))). Moreover, an applicant might have a priority need for accommodation for a special reason because of a combination of circumstances that when each is taken individually may not lead to a finding of vulnerability (R v Waveney DC ex p Bowers [1983] QB 238). 

The Code of Guidance contains a non-exhaustive list of those persons who may fall within this category of priority need, including: • Chronically sick people, including people with AIDS and HIV-related illnesses. Those people may be vulnerable not only because the extent of their medical conditions but also because the effects of their illnesses, or common attitudes towards it, make it difficult for them to find and maintain stable accommodation. All decision will be made on priority need following information that is provided by the applicant and assessed weather the applicant is vulnerable due to their disability on an individual basis.

b) – Do you use the MHCLG “Homelessness code of guidance for local authorities” to assess whether a person living with HIV has a priority need for social housing?

We use the Homelessness Code of Guidance for guidance around making a decision on whether an applicant has a priority need for accommodation if they become homeless. However, decisions are made by the local authority on an individual basis dependent on the information that is received when carrying out an assessment on the individual who is living with HIV. This would also be the case for any applicant to determine if they are vulnerable as a result of a disability.


2. Does your local authority have the sufficient time and resources to assess the priority need for social housing of a person living with HIV?

All applicants applying to join the Housing Register are assessed in line with the allocations policy and each assessment is given sufficient time and resource. We are strongly committed to fairness and equal treatment for all. We aim to treat all people equally no matter what their race, ethnic origin, nationality, religion, cultural and social background, refugee status, sex, sexuality, marital status, age, disability (including learning disability) health (including mental health) or HIV status. We aim to prevent unlawful discrimination and take positive action to promote equal opportunities for all.

This also applies for homelessness, if the applicant is eligible for housing assistance they are assessed in line with Homelessness legislation, each assessment is given sufficient time and resource. We are strongly committed to fairness and equal treatment for all. All decisions on priority need from assessments are based on the individual assessment and the information such as medical records that are collated.

3. Are there further resources or guidance that do not currently exist that would help your local authority assess if a person living with HIV had a priority need for social housing?

It is not possible to comment on resources or guidance that do not exist. Where new government guidance is published, this will always be considered and where appropriate, accounted for in our allocations policy.

You may re-use the information under an Open Government Licence.
If you are dissatisfied with the handling of your request, please write, explaining your grounds of appeal, to: 

Internal Review

Information Governance & Risk
Email: info.requests@leicester.gov.uk
